Breeding Policy

Bavarian and Hanoverian Scenthound Club of Canada (BHSCC)

Adopted 2018 Revised 05/20/2019





Breeding Policy

SUMMARY

The Breeding Policy is a set of rules followed by the BHSCC, based on objective and verifiable criteria, aimed at promoting the breed and maintaining its conformity with the breed standard, while ensuring that dogs that are members of the BHSCC are fit for work, a function for which the breed was created.

The purpose of this policy is to select the best breeders in Canada to meet these objectives and to select the appropriate dogs for import. The breeding policy includes the functions, roles and responsibilities of the directors, the internal and external breeding policy.







Table of Contents

Table des matières

SUMMARY	2
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS	4
1. FUNCTIONS	5
2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	6
2.2 Responsibilities of the BHSCC	6
Director of Training Courses	6
Director of Events	6
Breeding Director	6
Responsibility of the purchaser	6
Responsibility of the breeder	6
3. DOG DATABASE	7
Identification of the dog and its descendants	7
Medical results	7
Natural Aptitude Test (TAN)	7
Research report	8
Report of conducted on sight or nose to the ground on the track	8
Master's patent (BM)	8
4. BREEDING RULES	10
4.1 Internal mode of operation	10
4.2 Mode of operation for import	10
APPENDIX A – CONTRACT OF SALE	13
APPENDIX A – CONTRACT OF SALE APPENDIX B – RESEARCH NOTE TAKING FOR COMPILATION IN GESCHASSE	20
APPENDIX C – CERTIFICATE OF CONDUCTED ON THE TRACK OR ON SIGHT	22
APPENDIX D – APPLICATION FOR AN UNDERTAKING TO THE PATENT MASTER	23



Breeding Policy

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

CFC - Canine Federation of Canada

Eligibility Requirements - Eligibility requirements for the registration of animals of a breed, including breed distinguishing characteristics and characteristics. These characteristics and characteristics must reflect the physical essence of the breed, be observable and allow a reliable and objective evaluation of animals of that breed.

Distinctive features of the breed - Features that distinguish one breed from another.

Traits - Characteristics of a breed influenced by genetics, which may include size, coat color, color marks, hair texture and length, body, ear shape and attachment, tail shape and wear, feet, unique characteristics, and observable genetic variability.

FCI – International Cynological Federation (Fédération cynologique internationale)

ISHV - International Scenthound association (Internationalen Schweißhundverband)



Breeding Policy

1. FUNCTIONS

To make the selection of breeders, the club gives itself simple criteria and rules. Compliance with the breed standard, exclusion of defects such as hip dysplasia, proof of the ability to work (passing an aptitude test on an artificial track, actual work and possibly passing a natural track event) are important criteria to ensure offspring of the breed.

The structure of the BHSCC is entirely dedicated to this policy. In particular, the means implemented to frame this breeding policy are

- roles and responsibilities assigned to directors appointed by the BHSCC
- dog databases
- internal operating rules and import



Breeding Policy

2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.2 Responsibilities of the BHSCC

The functions assumed within the board of directors of the BHSCC to meet the objectives of this breeding policy are a person in charge of training courses, a director of events and a breeding director.

These managers essentially use two tools to help them carry out their responsibilities: the database of dogs (and their handler) and the database of research reports, in connection with the dogs in the database of dogs.

Director of Training Courses

The BHSCC considers it important to provide its members with specialized training. The mandate of the director of training courses is to ensure logistics (reservation, invitation, didactic material, manage registrations, surround himself with a team to assist him during the course, identify trainers, management of technical equipment and workshops) and update the content of the training course.

This course presents among other things the breed, its history, but the essential part concerns the education of the young dog. By education, it is necessary to understand classical canine education (sitting, lying down, walking on the foot, ...), canine education in tracking and finally education in research (ex: pendelzau exercise, fishing rod game, search for clues, ...).

Obtaining a dog via the BHSCC by a club member requires that member to have completed this training.

Director of Events

It is essential that a Natural Aptitude Test (TAN) be organized annually. To do this, the BHSCC appoints a test director. His role is normally to ensure logistics (select the event site, obtain the necessary authorizations, advertise, manage registrations, find the judge(s), find the team of track installers, lay tracks and side events, contact the veterinarian, surround himself with a team to assist him during the TAN day. In the case of Patents, logistics must also be provided by the test director.

Getting a dog comes with a duty to do the tests.

Breeding Director

The breeding director is responsible for the implementation of the breeding policy. It is he who defines which bitch can reproduce and with which stallion. It selects the dogs likely to be imported. Finally, he chooses where the puppies will be placed, and for this purpose, he manages the lists of puppy requests).

Responsibility of the purchaser

The breeding policy defines the desired orientations for breeding on Canadian territory. It is up to each owner of HS or BGS and future owner to respect these criteria, which aim to identify and select potential breeders, bearers of qualities considered representative for the breed concerned, and which it is desirable to perpetuate.

Responsibility of the breeder

The breeder must comply with Appendix A (contract of sale) obligation of the breeder is to respect the policy (follow the instructions of the breeding director), play open book (transparent) detected problems on the parents.



Breeding Policy

3. DOG DATABASE

A database of dogs that are members of the BHSCC contains for each dog the information relevant to the breeding objectives. It is the breeding director who ensures that all data relating to dogs include links to copies of documents relating to the dog (pedigrees, diplomas, photos, ...).

In this database, we find, among other things, information on:

Identification of the dog and its descendants

The information concerning the identification of the dog makes it possible to understand its ancestry, its origins, etc.

- Complete dog identification, microchip, date and place of birth
- Copy of the pedigree
- Book of origins and possible import data;
- Expo results, championship title(s), categories;
- Results of presented and successful work tests of ancestry, compliance examinations

Medical results

Data affecting future litters, anomalies, characters, etc.

- DNA test of related ties, non-recessive hereditary diseases.
- Medical data such as test results for coxofemoral dysplasia certified by the Orthopedic Foundation for Animals (OFA), veterinary examinations, dog health

Natural Aptitude Test (TAN)

For the handler, the test begins with the drafting of the commitment form, the elements of which will be used to draw up the judge's sheets. To be considered, the commitment form must be sent on time, complete and legibly completed accompanied by the following documents:

Registration amount
Copy of the up-to-date membership card
Copy of CFC affiliation valid for the current year
Copy of rouge's dog work notebook (page 2 of the notebook)
Copy of Birth Certificate or Pedigree.
For foreign dogs, copy of the rabies vaccination certificate.

The test director confirms your commitment to tan by email. The costs of commitment to the event will not be reimbursed when the withdrawal occurs after the registration deadline. The handler (and а hunting d

	panying person) is asked to wear clothing adapted to the forest environment and the ne practiced.
Before	the event, the handler will entrust the organizer:
	The original of the Pedigree / Birth Certificate of the dog.
	The Dog's BHSCC WorkBook
	Proof of affiliation with the CFC valid for the current year.
	The vaccination record and possibly the regulatory rabies vaccination certificate.
During	the test, the handler must:
	Keep your dog on a leash or with a hunting harness.
	Follow the instructions of the jury.
	His work started, the dog can no longer be removed by the handler



Breeding Policy

☐ A courtesy to the organizer, the judges and the competitors, to stay until the announcement of the results.

For event dates, please consult the Club's agenda.

Research report

For each dog, we also collect the results of the research: the research reports. To characterize a blood dog and appreciate its ability to be selected by the breeding director as a breeder, it is necessary to know its level of performance in terms of research work. The collection of research reports from BHSCC members that are recorded in a database (GesChasse).

Figure 1. Screen printing of GesChasse software mobile app



The overall statistics from these reports are published. Individual statistics are a tool for the breeding director and are not made public. They are seized by each of the owners of HS ou BGS. To facilitate notetaking during the research season, a sheet is proposed in Appendix B. Search statistics must be entered by 31 December of each year at the latest.

Report of conducted on sight or nose to the ground on the track

Attestation de conduit is currently legal in Quebec province as long as the handler has control over his dog. A good lead dog must be able to make a led-on sight or nose to the ground on the track. In order for a certificate of conduct to be registered, the form (Appendix C) must be signed by hunters who have been witnesses.

Master's patent (BM)

The patent cannot be fully evaluated in Quebec since the carrying of a firearm in a research situation is not authorized under the Act respecting the conservation and development of wildlife. However, patents can be carried out on a natural search to observe the criteria of the TAN and Patent test regulations.

To be admitted to the Patent Master's test (*Brevet de maîtrise* (BM)), the form (Annex D) must have been previously completed. The dog must be at least 30 months old, be registered or have an FCI pedigree and have passed the TAN. The handler must be able to justify a certain experience in the



Breeding Policy

search for injured big game, by sending regular search reports, and present 2 certificates of conduct duly completed and signed.

The request is to be made by mail to the attention of the director of the tests su BHSCC by email to the info.cccrhb@gmail.com accompanied by the amount of the commitment Registration for the event will be confirmed by Email or phone call. To be taken into consideration, the commitment form must be accompanied by the following documents:

- Copy of the up-to-date membership card of the BHSCC and CFC membership.
- Copy of birth certificate or pedigree.
- Copy of page 3 of the workbook
- Copy of the diploma of success in the Test of Natural Aptitudes (TAN).
- Two certificates of conduct and prosecution duly completed and signed.
- A cheque for \$75 made payable to the BHSCC, in payment of the undertaking.

On the day of the event, the handler must be in possession of:

- a hunting permit in the area / game to which the search will be carried out
- a hunter's certificate
- proof of liability insurance
- the vaccination record including basic and rabies vaccines
- the pedigree of his dog
- the workbook

The person in charge of the Jury of the test will proceed to the verification of these five points beforehand. During the event, the handler must follow the instructions of the Jury and not take the initiative to release his dog without the agreement of the Jury. He is the only one allowed to give the coup de grace to the injured¹animal.

 $^{^{}m 1}$ When the law in the province allows it.



Breeding Policy

4. BREEDING RULES

4.1 Internal mode of operation

The breeding policy defines the minimum criteria that a dog must meet to be selected as a breeder. For this, throughout his life, the dog "climbs" in a selection grid as he meets different criteria.

The criteria to be met are defined in the selection grid shown below. Only dogs qualified as "Selected" (3 points) and "Recommended" (4 points) are admitted as breeders. So-called "Recommended" dogs are normally preferred for breeding.

Table 1. Summary of selection grid criteria

Confirmed	Recognized	Selected	Recommended
1 Point	2 Points	3 Points	4 Points
Confirmed (Standard)	Confirmed (Standard)	Confirmed (Standard)	Confirmed (Standard)
	TAN	TAN	TAN
	Ancestry 3/3 (TAN)	Ancestry 7/7 (TAN)	Ancestry 14/14 (TAN)
	HD A/B	HD A/B	HD A
		20 success reports	
		2 signed witness form to confirm a free pursuit with voice or sight ²	Patent master's (BM) with a free pursuit with voice or sight ²
			TB or EXC in National Breeding

To be confirmed, a dog must hold an FCI or Canadian pedigree. It must be identified by a microchip.

The FCI recommends reproducing above a level of inbreeding of 10%. The breeding director ensures that litters tend towards 0% inbreeding and avoid exceeding 5% over 3 generations.

By becoming a member of the BHSCC, everyone undertakes, in writing, to respect this policy, but also to present the work tests, to submit the dog to tests, such as the hip dysplasia test. Failure to comply with this commitment leads to the exclusion of the offending member and the impossibility for him to still obtain a puppy from the BHSCC. The owner of the dog must transmit the breeder's reports.

4.2 Mode of operation for import

The BHSCC is in support of the future owner. With the network of contacts and the privileged links between the breed clubs, the BHSCC offers a liaison and assistance service. For example, the BHSCC can recommend puppies to handlers and facilitate contact with the breeder. The administrators of the BHSCC are at no time responsible for the state of health of the puppies, conformation or fraudulent manipulation that may occur in the adoption process. The analyses are carried out in collaboration with the future buyer, the contract remains between the buyer and the breeder.

 $^{^{\}rm 2}$ Attestation of being carried out on sight or on sight must be signed by witnesses.



Breeding Policy

In order to be imported, a puppy must meet a number of requirements; these are either necessarily satisfied or desired. These requirements relate either to the puppy himself, to his parents, or even to several generations of his ascendants. These requirements are summarized in the table below.

Table 2. Summary of the requirements of the puppy's parents

Requirements	Obligatory	Desired
Parents are carriers of an FCI pedigree	×	
When available, a DNA analysis will verify that the puppy's parents are free of hereditary diseases		х
HD hip dysplasia of parents	A or B	Has
Parent compliance with breed standard	×	
Evidence of successful completion of artificial track ascendant work tests (TAN)	3/3	7/7
Evidence of successful completion of the ascending work tests on a natural track (BM)	3/3	7/7
Issus ISHV		Х
Parents with CAC and CACIB securities	3/3	7/7
Parents with champions titles		Х



Breeding Policy

Of course, the selection of puppies to import will also take into account dogs already present in Canada in order to increase the genetic variety (so that new puppies can breed with dogs already present in Canada, without causing inbreeding problems). Owners of imported puppies must commit to collaborate in the development of the breed by respecting and getting involved in the breeding policy as much as possible.

Table 3. Summary of puppy requirements

Requirements	Obligatory	Desired
The puppy is a carrier of an FCI pedigree	Х	
Age of adoption (weeks)	Max 16	8
Declaration of birth / scope	х	
The puppy is identified by a microchip	х	
DNA test confirming filiation or relationship with parents	х	
DNA test confirming that the puppy is free of hereditary non-recessive diseases		Х
Satisfactory examination by an independent veterinarian that the puppy is healthy free of heart murmur, heart defect, retina and iris intact, etc.	х	
Signing of a contract regarding the transfer of ownership of the puppy	x	
From ISHV		Х
Purchase price in reasonable market values	х	
Confirming veterinary examination ³	Х	
identity of the puppy and the age of the puppy	Х	
free from any signs of clinical disease,	х	
has been vaccinated at the earliest at six weeks of age against distemper, hepatitis, parvovirus and parainfluenza, these vaccines are licensed by the dog's country of origin, as well as the trade name and serial number of the vaccine(s), date and time of examination	х	
the date on which it was vaccinated the vaccine(s) was, must be legibly written by hand by the veterinarian.	х	
can be transported to Canada without suffering unduly due to infirmity, illness, injury, fatigue or any other cause	х	
the dog must be imported into Canada no later than 72 hours after the time of the examination.	х	
puppies must NOT have been vaccinated against rabies BEFORE the age of three months. After this age, the health certificate issued and signed by a veterinary practitioner accompanied by a certificate of vaccination against rabies.	х	

³ Verification with the Automated Import Reference System (AIRS) which shows the import requirements for products regulated by the Canadian Food Inspection Agency (CFIA).



Breeding Policy

APPENDIX A – CONTRACT OF SALE



Breeding Policy

Contract of sale between the undersigned,

```
On the one hand, Mr/ Mrs xxx

Domiciled: xxx

Phone(s): + xxx

Email: xxx@xxx.xx

Born on xx / xx / xxx in xxx

Passport / identity card / handler's license number: xxx

Breeder or breeder, hereinafter referred to as the seller,

And, on the other hand, Mr. / Mrs. xxx

Domiciled: xxx

Phone(s): + xxx

Email: xxx@xxx.xx

Born on xx / xx / xxx in xxx

Passport / identity card / handler's license number: xxx

Hereinafter referred to as the buyer,
```

It is concluded that the following is true.

1. Purpose of the Contract

The object of the contract is the purchase, by the *buyer* from the *seller* of a Hanovarian Scenthound (*Hannover'scher Schweißhund*), or Bavarian Mountain Scenthoud (*Bayerischer Gebirgsschweißhund*) belonging to "Group 6 (Running Dogs, Blood-Finding Dogs and Related Breeds), Section 2 (Blood-Finding Dogs)", as defined by the Cynological Federation International (FCI), whose breed standard is included under the number 213 and 217 in the classification of the same FCI,

Of sex:	☐ male	☐ female,
Named		
Color:	☐ Light red-deer	☐ Red-dark light deer,
	☐ Brindle strongly	☐ Brindle weakly
	lacksquare with mask	☐ without mask,
Carrying a chip number: xxx		
Born on xx / xx / xxx at the seller's home,		
Whose father is named xxx, bearing the affix xxx (pedigree n° xxx),		
Whose mother is named xxx, bearing the affix xxx (pedigree n° xxx),		

Hereinafter referred to as the puppy.

2. Price

The *seller* sells the puppy for a total sale *price*, negotiated in advance of xxx Euros / Canadian Dollars. This amount includes all fees and any taxes. This total *sale price* is paid by the buyer to



Breeding Policy

the seller as follows: (1) a deposit of xxx Euros / Canadian Dollars paid on xx / xx / xxx,and (2) a balance of xxx Euros / Canadian Dollars, paid at the latest when the *seller* hands over the *puppy* to the *buyer*.

3. Repayment

It is well understood that the deposit referred to above was paid for the *seller* to reserve the puppy for the *buyer*. If the *Seller*, for any reason whatsoever, other than those arising from the will or responsibility of the *Buyer*, were to be unable to deliver the *puppy* to the *Buyer*, the *Seller* would reimbursethe *Buyer*, at the first request of the *Buyer*, (1) the amount of such deposit, as well as (2) any other fees paid by the *buyer*, in order to welcome the *puppy*, on the basisof written supporting documents that the latter should then provide. In particular, if the lice were to be empty, if the number of puppies were to be insufficient for the seller to fulfil his obligations at the end of this contract, if the seller were to be unable to deliver the *puppy* to the *buyer* within 120 calendar days, counted from the signing of this contract, the *seller* should refund the deposit to the *buyer* under the conditions defined above.

On the other hand, if the *buyer* were to renounce to buy the *puppy* because of his sole will, for reasons of personal convenience, the seller would be entitled not to refund this deposit.

4. Special Conditions

- a) Despite its quality, the puppy is not guaranteed for the purposes of dog shows, nor work. Therefore, ownership will be transferred to the buyer under the terms, conditions and guarantees provided for in this contract, with the exception of all others.
- b) The *puppy* is sold as a companion dog, hunting dog, working dog for blood recovery.
- c) The *puppy* is sold with the right of reproduction.
- d) The seller must duly register, at his own expense, the property of the puppy with the cytological company of his country of residence, affiliated to the FCI on behalf of the buyer.
- e) The seller guarantees that the puppy is in excellent health and that a European health passport guaranteeing the veterinary examination and the necessary vaccinations will be transmitted to the buyer when the seller gives him the puppy.
- f) The seller will give to the buyer the registered puppy, vaccinated, chipped and duly dewormed, well fed, without visible injuries and without problems of conformation, with:
 - a. The certificate of origin / studbook.
 - b. The vaccination file / European health passport.
- g) Within a reasonable time, in any case within a period of less than three months counted from the delivery of the *puppy* to the *buyer* the seller will transmit, at his expense, to the *buyer* the pedigree export issued by the cynological company of his country of residence, affiliated to the FCI. The authenticity of this pedigree export will be confirmed by the official stamp of the International Cynological Federation. The seller will always be able to prove that he has transmitted the exported pedigree to the *buyer* (acknowledgment of receipt, registered mail, ...).



Breeding Policy

- h) The authenticity of the certification of the "working dog" origins of the puppy will be confirmed by the affixing of the official hologram "ISHV" ("Internationalen Schweißhundverband», or International Scenthound Association) on the export pedigree of the puppy transmitted by the seller to the buyer.
- i) The puppy is not a toy, it is a living being. Legal animal welfare measures will be applied in case of negligence towards this animal. It is therefore the responsibility of the buyer to:
 - Keeping the puppy in appropriate storage conditions (putting the puppy in a chain, in a cage or in a small kennel, are not considered appropriate storage conditions);
 - b. Do not leave the *puppy* on his own; the puppy must be left in a sufficiently large and suitable fenced place where he can run and exercise; he must not be exposed, for several hours unattended, to the cold in winter, in full sun in summer, or outside all night regardless of the outside temperature.
 - c. Do not leave the *puppy* in a kennel or cage most of the time and make him live as often as possible within the family.
 - d. Take care and feed properly, appropriately with quality food, the *puppy*, especially to avoid excess weight to the animal.
 - e. Provide enough fresh water to the puppy.
 - f. Give the *puppy* enough exercise and affection.
 - g. Provide the *puppy* with the necessary veterinary care in case of illness or injury, timely deworming and necessary vaccinations.
 - h. Do not make the *puppy* suffer, or let suffer, in any way whatsoever.
- j) The *buyer* will also undertake to care for and educate the *puppy* in accordance with the stated goals for this purchase.
- K) The buyer must comply with the laws and regulations in force in his region; in particular, he will not let the puppy wander.
- The buyer will follow with the puppy the courses of canine education, compatible with the goals displayed for this purchase; this will allow to continue the socialization of the puppy with people and other dogs (a well-educated dog is a happy dog);
- m) In case of mistreatment or neglect of the *puppy*, the seller may claim the free return of the *puppy* and take full responsibility.
- n) If the buyer wishes to use the puppy for breeding purposes, thebuyer undertakes to have an officialhip dysplasia test carried out by recognized veterinary services on the puppy when the puppy is 15 to 36 months old.
- o) the *buyer* declares that he does not act as an intermediary (straw man commissioner) in the purchase of this puppy.
- p) The *buyer* also declares that under no circumstances will the *puppy* be sold, transferred, or given to a pet store, a third-party breeding or any other animal trade.
- q) If, for one reason or another, custody of the purchased puppy should become impossible for the buyer, the latter will have to ensure that the puppy is always fed and cared for properly. He will inform the seller of this situation. Thebuyer will also have to find a



Breeding Policy

potential new owner for the *puppy*. In this case of sale or donation of the puppy, by the *buyer*, to a third person, the *buyer* must have received the agreement of the *seller* in the choice of the new owner, before the departure of the *puppy* from the buyer's home. The seller will have a preferential right of pre-emption, which he is not obliged to exercise. If the seller does not exercise his right of pre-emption and if he approves the choice of the new owner by the *buyer*, the latter must provide the seller with all the contact details (address and telephone) of the new owner, within 30 calendar days, following the date of the change of ownership. In addition, the seller will be able to help in the relocation of the puppy to a suitable house. Finally, the *buyer* will never have the right to abandon the puppy in an animal shelter.

- r) The sale of the *puppy* by the buyer to a third party releases the seller from any guarantee.
- s) The buyer must obtain the agreement of the seller to euthanize the said puppy, and this, for any reason whatsoever. It is understood and understood that this contract is drawn up for the protection of this puppy and the breed «Hannover'scher Schweißhund" or "Bayerrischer Gebirgsschweißhund". This contract is signed by all parties for the wellbeing and protection of this puppy. If this contract is broken by the buyer, the seller has the right to repossess said puppy (on the date that suits him and at his convenience) and possibly his offspring.
- t) No part of this contract is transferable.

5. Guarantee against Hereditary Diseases

- a) The health of the puppy is guaranteed until the age of 3 years, after birth, for any hereditary, genetic or congenital problem. This guarantee is not valid if the puppy suffers from a nutritional deficiency or excessive weight. By "hereditary, genetic or congenital problem" we understand that, at least, one of the following conditions is met:
 - a. The *puppy* is not able to have a normal life and fulfill the goals pursued by the *buyer* when he bought it, as defined above (for example: companion dog, hunting dog, working dog intended for blood research).
 - b. The *puppy* is recognized as non-compliant with the breed standard.
 - c. The puppy is recognized as unfit for reproduction, for example, for one of the following reasons: character defects (aggressive or fearful dog), upper or lower prognathism (articulated in pliers, deviated incisor arch), absence of teeth, entropion, ectropion, black color, hip dysplasia, monorchidism or cryptorchidism, broken whip of birth, size outside the indicated limits.
- b) In order for the buyer to activate the clauses of this guarantee, thebuyer must notify the seller in writing as soon as possible and provide him with a written report from the attending veterinarian, confirming the causes causing the request for activation of the clauses of this guarantee. The seller may then request, within a maximum period of 4 weeks, a counter-expertise practiced by the veterinarian of his choice; this examination may relate to the puppy himself or simply to the medical data provided by the buyer'sveterinarian. The costs incurred by any expert opinions and counter-expertise, including any transport costs of the puppy related to these expertises, will be borne by



Breeding Policy

- the party recognized as not having provided proof of the validity (for the *buyer*) or the invalidity (for the seller) of the activation of the clauses of this guarantee.
- c) The terms of this warranty are not valid if the *buyer* has transferred, by sale or donation, the property of the puppy to a third party.
- d) If the buyer has complied with the obligations made to him under the terms and conditions set out in paragraph 4, the seller will pay the buyer, under this guarantee against hereditary diseases, for the puppy delivered, 50% of the total selling price of the puppy:
 - a. If the hereditary, genetic or congenital problem significantly decreases the value of use of the *puppy* or its quality of life.
 - b. If the puppy gets a D or E score on the hip dysplasia (HD) test, if the test is performed when the puppy is between 15 and 36 months old, but before the female puppy has had her first possible litter; moreover, this warranty clause will only be applied (1) if the hip dysplasia test and its analysis are performed by the body official independent of the buyer's country, and (2) if the veterinary certification of the sterilization of the sick dog is transmitted to the seller;
 - c. If the *puppy* is recognized as unfit for reproduction due to a hereditary, genetic or congenital problem, as defined above.
- e) In the case of the death of said *puppy*, consequences only due to a hereditary, genetic or congenital problem, a certificate from a veterinarian will be required indicating the cause of death. This case of the death of the *puppy* also covers the case where the *puppy* should have been euthanized due to a hereditary, genetic or congenital problem. The *seller* then undertakes either to replace the *puppy* free of charge with another puppy from the next litter, as soon as possible, or to reimburse the *buyer* (1) the total price of the *sale*, including the deposit, as well as (2) any other fees paid by the *buyer*, in order to accommodate the *puppy*, on the basis of written supporting documents which the latter would then have to provide. The choice of one of these two solutions is left to the sole arbitrator of the *buyer*.

6. Disputes

a. In the event of disputes between the *buyer* and the *seller*, with regard to the guarantee, the parties will try by mutual agreement, as a matter of priority, to find arbitration with the official bodies of a BHSCC, recognized by a cynological society affiliated to the FCI, provided that neither the seller nor the *buyer* are members of this Breed Club. Otherwise, the parties will try to find arbitration with the official bodies of the International Scenthound Association ISHV (*Internationalen Schweißhundverband*,). Regardless of the arbitrator selected, the parties shall refrain from contesting the opinion rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators so chosen, such opinion having the force of law.

b.



Breeding Policy

c. In the absence of an amicable agreement, or arbitration, only the Canadian courts are competent to deal with any dispute arising from this contract.

7. Diverse

- a) If any provision of this Agreement is held to be void or unenforceable, then it shall be deemed unwritten, but the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue to have full effect.
- b) The *seller* intends to stay in constant contact with the *buyer* and will remain ready to help him according to his knowledge and possibilities.
- c) The buyer accepts that the seller, after prior contact, may occasionally visit the puppy, so that he can use the information and experiences obtained in this way in his future breeding.

In witness whereof, after having read, understood and accepted these provisions, have signed, at xxx, the xx xxxx 2xxx, this contract in xx copies, a copy being given to each of the signatories.

The seller

(Preceded by "read and approved")

The buyer

(Preceded by "read and approved")

witness

Name: xxx
First name: xxx
Domiciled: xxx
Phone(s): + xxx
E-mail: xxx@xxx.xx
Born on xx / xx / xxx in xxx

Passport / identity card / handler's license

number: xxx



Breeding Policy

APPENDIX B – RESEARCH NOTE TAKING FOR COMPILATION IN GESCHASSE



Breeding Policy

IDENTIFICATION			
Form number:	Date:	Time:	Sullity
Region adm:	Hunting area:	Vehicle km : km	<u></u> 0
Handler:			□jelly
Dog:		☐ HS ☐ BGS	
RESEARCH INFORMATION			
Result		Hunting	Projectile / Device
☐ Negative control (without	clue)	☐ Approach	☐ Bullet (rifled weapon)
☐ Negative control on passi	ng of relay	☐ Affut	☐ Ball (smooth weapon)
☐ Positive control (recovere	d by a hunter)	☐ Collision	☐ Lead
☐ Failure after check		☐ Not given	☐ Slug
☐ Failure after control and I	nandover	☐ Other	☐ Bow arrow
☐ Failure with relay passage	1		☐ Crossbow arrow
☐ Failure on handover		Clues	☐ Collision
☐ Negative state ☐ Not giv	ven .	☐ hair	☐ Other
☐ Non-compliant paper rep	ort	□ bone _	
☐ Success after control		☐ blood	Projectile model
☐ Success after control and	handover	☐ teeth	☐ Not given
\square Success on passing the ba	ton	☐ Autre	
Track			
Track age: (h)	Runway length: _	km Se	arch duration: (h)
Pursuit	☐ conducted on sight		
☐ with GPS collar	☐ led nose on the track	INA	
lacksquare at the lanyard	Length m	fl_{ν}	
possibility to complete	Duration continuation _	(h)	
☐ none			5
BIG GAME INFORMATION		3 /10/	12 16 20
☐ Moose ☐ White-tailed o	leer □Bear □ Wolf □	Fox	The Market
☐ autre		_	
Age game:	-		13 15 13
Sex: ☐ male ☐ Female Em	ptied weight: lb	S	. T
Input box 1	Input box 2	_	it to
Exit area 1	Exit area 2		F J
Injury 1	Injury 2		
REACTION		the ch	
-	10-13 P	A PT	



Breeding Policy

APPENDIX C – CERTIFICATE OF CONDUCTED ON THE TRACK OR ON SIGHT

I, the undersigned			
certifies on his honor that the dog			
belonging to			
In pursuing hurt an estimated distance from the pursuitmeters, I witnessed that the quality of the following pursuit which is summarized as follows:			
 As soon as he is released, the HS or BGS pursues without any hesitation and never returns to get his handler. As soon as released, the HS or BGS continues returns at times, and must be revived 			
by its handler. As soon as released, the HS or BGS must be systematically restarted by its handler.			
The Dog's lead			
Conducted on sightLed nose on the track			
Other observations:			
I confirm that the farm lasted approximately minutes. The wound was located The estimated distance from work to leash			
The location of the search was in the area of			
near the municipality of			
Signature			
Email			
Postal address:			
Phone:			
(Details and details regarding the search on the back of the sheet)			



Breeding Policy

APPENDIX D – APPLICATION FOR AN UNDERTAKING TO THE PATENT MASTER

Dog Name (with affix):	
Breed :	Born on:
Identification:	
Microchip Number:	
• Register number / FCI:	
Handler Name:	
Full address:.	
Tel:	
release the organizer from any civil club or company not affiliated with	gulations of the BHSCC as well as the CFC and hereby or criminal liability. I declare that I am not part of an the CFC, nor of an organization not recognized by the tious or contagious diseases in my kennel.
Done at:	
Signature	